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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 7:00PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting to order. The first order of business is the public hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called to step forward, state the request. The Board will then ask questions of the applicant. Members of the public will then be invited to ask questions or to make statements. We have up to 62 days to make a decision. We will try to make a decision this evening. And, I’d like to request that anyone speaking please speak into the microphone so that it will then go into the tape recorder. 

Chairperson Cardone: We will start with the Roll Call.

Ms. Gennarelli takes Roll Call for Attendance. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:



JOHN MC KELVEY

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted - 7:01 PM)

ALDINO P. COATTI



28 WARING ROAD, NBGH










(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of Zoning Law Ordinance Sect. 185-19 A (4) Non-conforming buildings and uses-Discontinuance, and, a use variance for a non-conforming business use, in a Residential-3 (R-3) Zone, that was discontinued, and, an area variance.  

Chairperson Cardone: We are going to go a little bit out of order from the Agenda. We are going to start with the application of Aldino Coatti at 28 Waring Road in Newburgh. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Please use the mic.

Mr. Gailey: My name is Ben Gailey. I am an Attorney at Jacobowitz & Gubits and we represent Mr. Coatti. I spoke earlier today to the Board’s Attorney and also the Town Attorney, Mark Taylor who suggested that I come tonight and explain to the Board, we’re requesting an adjournment of the public hearing until next month, until your next meeting. The Attorney in my office who was handling this matter and is familiar with it, was suddenly unable to attend this evening and there’s nobody else in the office who is really familiar enough to represent the applicant tonight. So, when I spoke to the two Attorneys, it seemed that an adjournment would be O.K. But, I was requested to appear here and explain the circumstances to the Board and we apologize for this and I apologize to anybody in the public who is here on this application tonight. But, we would like to adjourn it for one month and we will certainly appear for the public hearing at your next meeting, next month.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for an adjournment?

Mr. Manley: I will make a motion for discussion purposes.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second it to make it a discussion.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do we have discussion on this motion?

Mr. Manley: I have just a couple of concerns. One is procedurally; there’s been a number of mailings that have gone out informing the public that there was a public hearing tonight. I think that the applicants going to have to be asked that if the Board does grant an adjournment until next month that they be re-notified. So that individuals can be noticed again of the date and time. I guess we can even ask Counsel if that can be a requirement.

Mr. Gailey: We have no problem in doing that, I would just ask if we could send those to anybody who is here for this hearing tonight or comes later for the hearing would be advised by the Board of the adjourned date. We would be glad to sent out new mailings, but I would just request that we do that just by regular mail as opposed to certified mail this time. We sent them certified the first time.


(Verbal opposition from the public audience.)

Mr. Gailey: You are already here; you know when the hearing is. 

(Additional opposition from the public audience)

Mr. Gailey: Sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: Are you suggesting that we make that a condition of the motion for adjournments, Mr. Manley?

Mr. Manley: I would at least want that at minimum to be a condition of the adjournment. My second concern surrounds the fact that the individuals that are here tonight may have brought certain items, maybe potentially of evidentiary in nature for this Board and they may not be able to attend next months and that may create a problem next month for those individuals. That is just my second concern with the hearing. 

Mr. Hughes: I have some concerns as well. I think this is asking for an interpretation and some other things here that are listed and its not brain surgery and certainly if you are an Attorney, you ought to be able to be qualified to stand on your feet and address this thing and you’ve got all these people out here and I don’t think that I could go along with that myself. And I seconded this for a discussion so that we bring these facts out to the public, so, you can’t convince me.

Mr. Gailey: There’s a lot of facts that are at issue here that I’m not familiar with and whether you are an Attorney or not it’s a fact based determination.

Mr. Hughes: As we are, faced with facts here.

Mr. Gailey: Well, correct. So, it’s important to have somebody here that is familiar with the facts and you know my client is not here either this evening.

Chairperson Cardone: May I make the suggestion that we hear this, this evening and hold it open, so that we can then hear it again next month.

Mr. Gailey: That’s fine. But, I have nothing to present this evening. We have submitted an application to the Board with a recitation of the facts and the background. I have no objection if the Board wants to hold this over for a month, but aside from what we have already submitted I have nothing more to submit this evening. If you’d like to hear from the public, this evening … ?

Mr. Hughes: Well, yeah definitely we would like to hear what they have to say and we will go from there.

Mr. Gailey: That’s fine, but I would request that the Board to keep the hearing open until next month to give the applicant their right to submit the evidence to the Board.

Mr. Hughes: I thought just told us you gave us everything that you had to say.

Mr. Gailey: No, I didn’t. I said I have nothing more this evening to submit. But, there is information we would like to submit but again, I am not familiar with that, I am not able to do that tonight.

Mr. Hughes: Are you telling me that the Attorney that is familiar with this couldn’t provide the facts or send a piece of paper over with you to qualify that stuff.

Mr. Gailey: Yeah, it was, it was a sudden, you know, happening that she was unable to attend. That’s right.

Chairperson Cardone: As I stated before, if the Board would be in agreement, I would like to be able to hear the members of the public this evening and hold it open then until next month. 

Mr. Kunkel: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: And, with the same right that the public can bring back and say what ever they want should be as well.

Chairperson Cardone: Absolutely, absolutely.

Mr. Gailey: Of course. O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: The only other thing that I would add to that is that the public should be encouraged, whoever is here tonight, to come back out because there may be additional information that could be issued at the next hearing that they may be here to hear or to present information to counter whatever is presented.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I will inquire of you sir; your client is not here as well?

Mr. Gailey: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: Is there a reason for that?

Mr. Gailey: Well, yeah, it was my understanding after speaking to the two Attorneys today that the matter would be adjourned, so, I told him it was unnecessary for him to attend. 

Mr. Hughes: Never count your chickens before they are hatched.

Ms. Martini: Counselor, I did say that it would be up to the Board Members to decide. I mean I didn’t say that it would automatically be adjourned. With all fairness I said it’s up to the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any members of the public who would like to speak to this application, please stand and state your name and address and please speak into the mic.        

Neighbor #1 presented petition from the neighborhood taxpayers in a residential zoned area, asking that the variance for Mr. Coatti be turned down and garage business closed down tonight. Also presented pictures (from kitchen window every morning for 10 months - tractor trailer trucks, the kids at bus stop) and police reports to the Board regarding private property, public lewdness. Stated building is zoned as a private garage in a residential neighborhood and definition of a private garage is an enclosed space for storage of one or more vehicles not for gain through the commercial rental of space. Because Mr. Coatti’s decision not to comply with this or any other zoning codes over past 10 months; their family and neighborhood has been forced to tolerate unfavorable, harmful and obnoxious situations. Weekly basis tractor-trailer trucks roll into development at 6:45 AM, noise disturbing and size of trucks cause them to back up all the way into Waring Road, past Algonquin, drive through a private lot that has No Trespassing signs, comes back up road and backs into garage driveway, has dates and times. In spring, while kids were at bus stop with school buses, tractor trailer backed up to Waring past Algonquin, the school buses had to back up, so the tractor-trailer could back up so it could go through the private lot again. Kids in danger. Noise of employees and the truck sits there with engine running for an hour while unloading. They are allowed to run only 5 minutes. Employees urinating on side of building or in front of their truck. Weekly change of employees, different cars, different states. Concerns for safety of children, for these men, possibly pedophiles, watching their children, making remarks and sneering at her children and other neighbors’ children.  

Neighbor #2 who owned property 40 years until 1999, said it is zoned residential, as it always was, never commercial, storage only. Stop wasting Tax Payers money and time and close it down now. 

Neighbor #3 expressed concerns about possible perverts operating out of the garage, observed them looking at her and her daughter and making comments to her daughter, causing her to cry and forcing neighbor #3 to drive her daughter to and from school, concerned with the safety of all the other children, walking and riding bikes or just being outside and on the street, including her son who was almost hit by truck. Also saw some trucks with out of state plates driving slowly around the neighborhood apparently observing the children and young girls, making sexual comments. Public urination. 

Neighbor #4 while compiling the petition, found out they are waking up not just them, but the whole street daily, early in the morning. No safety codes, piles of junk and debris, possibly chemicals. Reiterated public urination - all over building. Reiterated Neighbor #1’s comments. 

Neighbor #5 questioned Zoning or Road rules for weight roads can carry. Concerned that a 53 ft truck, unloading you are already overloading the road. Corner of Waring and Algonquin the sewer system has caved in. One drain on right side covered with two pylons. One on left side recessed about foot and a quarter below the roadbed. Sunroom business is seasonal and if held over, its end of season for them anyway. Reiterated comments of Neighbor #1, 3 and 4 and #2.

Neighbor #6 had also been awakened at 6:45AM by tractor-trailer. Rule of precedents, when they tried to put up a building on Berry Lane, Town of Newburgh, which is Residential, a lot of commercial across from the Cronomer Valley Firehouse. We were denied building a building unless we put in a road that met the DOT requirements which was about (about 1 ½ feet ) this thick for about 100 feet and they would not let our tractor-trailers come one day a week. So, if they were denied 10 years ago because of a road situation that these people should be denied at least on that issue. Let them make Algonquin Drive 30 feet wide and (about 1 ½ foot ) this thick.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other comments from the public?

Neighbor #1: I would really appreciate if the Board would make a decision on this tonight, really.

Chairperson Cardone: Right now we have a motion on the floor and I don’t know if the Board wants to vote on that motion or if Mr. Manley wishes to withdraw the motion, but right now we still have a motion on the floor.

Mr. Manley: At this point, I will allow my motion to stand, presently.

Chairperson Cardone: And we have a second to that motion. Do we have any other further discussion from the Board on the motion? 

Mr. Hughes: Well, I seconded it for the purpose of discussion just what to hear what was going on and like I said earlier, I can’t imagine any reason for it to go over to another month. It’s quite evident here what we were called here to do tonight and that was to make an interpretation and to rule on a variance and I don’t see anything forth coming that would present us from doing that tonight.

Mr. Kunkel: Do we have a legal requirement that the applicant must have his say?

Ms. Martini: He should be heard. He needs to be heard to ...

Mr. Hughes: But, shouldn’t it be his responsibility to be here to be heard?

Mr. Kunkel: He should have been here.

Chairperson Cardone: But, right now we need to vote on the motion and then we can go on from there. Right now, we need to vote on the motion.

Mr. Hughes: Could you repeat the motion?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Manley, please repeat the motion?

Mr. Manley: My motion was to allow the current applicant to hold over till next months meeting with the caveat, number one that the people could be heard tonight that were here and number two that they all get re-noticed by certified mail, all of the cards.

Chairperson Cardone: That was the motion for the adjournment until next month. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Neighbor #7: Can’t they put a stop to this business instead of waiting until next month? Code Enforcements been there numerous times and nothing has happened. They go to Court, they get it adjourned, they get extensions, I mean if you let it go another month, at least tonight, get Code Enforcement over there, get a stop order on the place, close it down. Then, they can have their month to do what they have to do. It shouldn’t have to go on for another month. It’s been 10 months already these people have been suffering.

Neighbor #1: Can I say one other thing? That Code Compliance has been out there taking pictures, this was in the Spring. Wayne Booth was out there, parked in my driveway, took pictures, took names, this was in March. My husband and I have been back to the Town Meetings month after month, so they all, everybody knows about it, but nobody is doing anything about it. And, I know those Zoning Laws; it is illegal to run a business in a Residential Zone. We are R-3 Zone. This is commercial, end of story. If I wanted to put a Bed & Breakfast in my house, would you let me do it? No, because it’s against Code. Same thing, this has got to stop, we’re asking you tonight, close them down, let them come back in October, say what he has to say, we’ll say what we have to say and then you can make your decision. Then he has got to go, forever. That’s my suggestion.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Gailey: The business there is not Mr. Coatti’s business and I don’t believe he is aware of everything that’s ... 

(Audience murmurs erupted)

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me; we can only hear one person at a time.

(Audience murmurs erupted)

Mr. Gailey: No, he knows the business is in there, but I spoke to him …

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me; we can only hear one person at a time.

Mr. Gailey: I spoke to him today and I don’t believe, and I too think it’s terrible, the things I am hearing tonight, that’s going on there. And, I am sure he would agree with that. I don’t believe he is aware of the full extent of what’s happening. And, I am going to give him a call first thing tomorrow morning and I am not saying that Code Enforcement shouldn’t go out there and do their job, but I’ll be speaking to him about the same thing tomorrow morning on the telephone.

Neighbor #8: What’s the matter with tonight? It’s only 7:30.

Neighbor #1: And, I have seen him there during the day, with these people there, he knows what’s going on. I live right next door. I don’t miss a thing.

Mr. Gailey: I just have one question for the Board as well as for the public. I am not clear on how often these trucks are there, I’ve heard daily, weekly and monthly and I am not … Is it every day these trucks are there? 

Chairperson Cardone: One of the neighbors, please answer that question. Yes, the gentlemen in the back.

Neighbor #6:  Every day past my house early in the morning, there is 3 or 4 pickup trucks that drive down the road to start work. I know that every Tuesday or Wednesday, because sometimes it’s Tuesday, sometimes it’s Wednesday mornings I see a big blue Werner Tractor-trailer coming in. So I know that it’s at least once a week, dropping their sunroom material off at that place.

Mr. Gailey: Is that about 3 or 4 pickups everyday and a tractor-trailer at least once a week?

Neighbor #6: At least once a week, and I’ve seen he has got 4 of his work trucks roll up every morning, every afternoon, sometimes I am home at lunch and I’ll see them drive by at lunchtime. This afternoon, I got home at 4:30 PM, they were all pulling into the lot, there were four business, three, I know three, I don’t want to say four. I know I saw three business trucks there, you know work trucks. The middle garage door bay was open and that place was literally filled with stuff from the fabrication of his sunrooms. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #6: Because I was in the sunroom business and there is a lot of cutting and a lot of scrap and because everybody gets a different size sunroom and the manufacturers send you a 20 foot piece of extruded aluminum and you need a 10 foot piece. And, so there is manufacturing going on in this building.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #9: Mrs. Cardone, Members of the Board, bottom line, is legal or is it illegal to have a Commercial Business in an R-3 area?

Chairperson Cardone: It’s illegal.

Neighbor #9: It’s illegal. Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s illegal, unless you have a variance.  

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, if I could ask just a couple of questions? And anybody from the public I am sure can hopefully supply just a couple of answers. One was, does anybody know the name of the business or the name of the trucks that are showing up there that …?   

Audience Member #1: Better Living. Better Living Sunrooms of New York.

Mr. Manley: Sir, are you the owner of Better Living?

Audience Member #1: No, I am not.

Neighbor #1: But, my point being is even though he does not own the Sunroom Company, Mr. Coatti, he is responsible.

Chairperson Cardone: He owns the building. Yes.

Neighbor #1: Like if I own a house or if I own other homes, I am responsible for what goes on in those homes, drugs, illegal things, cause you would find me, you’d find me, the people that rent there, they go and come, but I am responsible for that property. Just like he is responsible, he’s getting a check every month for rent. Correct? He’s not doing this for free, I am sure.

Mr. Manley: I am not questioning that; I just wanted that for some background information.

Neighbor #1: O.K. Sorry, it’s been 10 months.

Mr. Manley: That’s O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Did you have other questions?

Mr. Manley: The other question, I believe, was answered as to how many times the truck shows up. That was once a week for the large tractor-trailer and they come down Algonquin? 

Neighbor #1: Yes

Mr. Manley: From Powder Mill, they make the left?

Neighbor #1: Yes

Mr. Manley: Or do they come in from the Winona Lake Firehouse there?

Neighbor #1: No, they couldn’t make it there.

Neighbor #3: I just wanted to say something that the Police Department said tractor-trailers are not supposed to be in that neighborhood to begin with. There is a weight limit and they are not supposed to be on those roads. So, I don’t know why nothing is being done when the Police and everyone is involved too. 

Chairperson Cardone: Have you told them what day the tractor-trailer comes in? Have you let the Police know what day of the week that they should look?

Neighbor #1: Wayne knows, Wayne Booth knows, we told him constantly.

Neighbor #5: Some of the pictures have dates on them.

Neighbor #1: Well I leave them off. But they know, they have been sitting there watching, so they know what’s going on. This is all documented.

Mr. Manley: I have a couple of other questions but they pertain more to legal questions at this point for Counsel. I am not sure that they would be questions that I would want to face in public though. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right now we need to vote on the motion, which is whether or not we should adjourn.

Mr. Manley: Right, because if we could add something to that I would amend my motion.

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me, don’t you mean postpone?

Chairperson Cardone: No, his motion was to adjourn. We have not voted on the original motion. 

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Chairperson Cardone: We must vote on the original motion. So I am asking first of all for a vote on the original motion or to withdraw the original motion, one or the other.

Mr. Gailey: I thought it was to continue the hearing, I believe.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, I made the suggestion after that, that we just keep it open which is different than adjourning it. But, we need to vote on the original motion.

Mr. Manley: Right. For purposes now, I will withdraw that motion so that we can have an opportunity to speak with Counsel, because there is a couple of questions that I have pertaining to that, that I think that I need to get answered before I can proceed.

Chairperson Cardone: So the motion to adjourn has been withdrawn.

Audience: May we know what your questions for Counsel are? 

Mr. Manley: No, I’m not going to, they are actually legal questions that I prefer to ask the Counsel privately.

Chairperson Cardone: Any time, any of the Board Members have question that is a legal question, they are able to ask Counsel in Executive Session and I am sure though then when we come back after Executive Session what was discusses will become apparent because it will then be brought into the discussion.

Neighbor #1: I do have a suggestion and its nothing against Carolyn, OK. But if there comes a time when you are asking a question and maybe you are not really sure, can you call somebody, another and get some answers. And, I am not saying she doesn’t know her job, because everybody in a job sometimes you just don’t know what to do cause you don’t, call the judge, call somebody, please. That’s what I am asking.

Chairperson Cardone: Any time that a question that would come up that needs research, then the answer wouldn’t be given until it has been researched and we get a proper answer.

Neighbor #1: Right. Is there a way that you can get an answer tonight because I am sure if you can contact somebody, somebody can, I mean ...

Chairperson Cardone: I can’t say that we would this evening. As I said at the beginning, we try to make a decision on the evening that we’re here, each applicant. However, legally we have up to 62 days to make a decision. And, we very often do not make the decision on the evening that we actually hear it. Yes, in the back.

Neighbor #6: Well I guess I would like to hear a motion brought to the table denying his request for variance tonight and take a straw vote and see where you folks stand on this issue with the exception of Mr. Manley.

Chairperson Cardone:  There are two issues here, first of all they are asking for an interpretation, that is the first issue that we have to look at.

Neighbor #6: I just can’t imagine that there is more legal questions after all of this time.

Chairperson Cardone: The interpretation involves whether or not this building has been used continuously as a storage or not and that’s what they’re asking for the interpretation on. Has it been …?

Neighbor #2: I owned the building 40 years and all we were allowed to do was store our antique car there. We didn’t run a business in it. Why are we doing this? Case closed. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Neighbor #2: I don’t care how many lawyers you get. It’s not legal. 

Chairperson Cardone: Next.

Audience Member: I’d like to know if you can’t make these decisions tonight, instead of waiting another month, can we have a special meeting within the next week or so, so that we can get this done. Our neighborhood has been suffering as you know and I don’t think it is a stretch to ask you to do that for us. So, if you can have your legal Counsel questions answered within the next week, can’t we have this rescheduled? 

Chairperson Cardone: What we would have to do is, the Zoning Board meets once a month, they meet monthly. In order for us to have an additional meeting, we would have to talk to Members of the Town Board in order to get the O.K. to have a meeting, let’s say next week. We also would have to have a building freed up, a night that we would all be available that this room would be free. I am not saying that’s impossible to do. It is possible to do but it does involve more than just saying O.K. let’s meet next week.

Mr. Gailey: We would agree to that. I was just about to make the same suggestion.

Neighbor #8: Just if I may, just one quick question, if you have already said that its illegal to run a business in a R-3 Zone

Chairperson Cardone: Unless a person has a variance to do that.

Neighbor #8: He does have a variance? He has a commercial variance now?

Chairperson Cardone: Not to my knowledge.

Neighbor #8: O.K. So then, if it’s against the law to do that can’t the Code Enforcement Officer apply closed to not do business until resolved?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we are not Code Enforcement Officers; you know I have to make that clear. 

Neighbor #8: Oh. Understood, can you not make a recommendation?

Chairperson Cardone: What happens is that the Code Enforcement Officer was called apparently several times, went to look at it, determined that there was a business going on there. I would imagine that was his determination. Then, the person who owns the property was seeking relief and saying, no we are not running a business, we are a storage place and then they came before the Board. Then it was sent to us to make that interpretation. That’s kind of the history of it.

Neighbor #1: Let me ask you one thing, I know that when you are sitting there before tonight, you had paperwork in front of you as to what was going on, did you not?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Neighbor #1: You don’t walk into this blind, do you?

Chairperson Cardone: No, we also I should mention go out to look at all the properties. I was there on-site. I know exactly what you are talking about.

Neighbor #1: O.K. Do you not have paperwork in front of you of all the complaints? Everything that Wayne told you, everything Code Compliance, all the pictures that Wayne took, do you not have that?

Chairperson Cardone: No, we don’t have that. 

Neighbor #1: How are you supposed to and this a general question, how are you supposed to ever make a decision on just what he says or we say? Don’t you count on the rest of the Code Compliance Department to give you information to help you make an educated decision? Or are you just going to go by just what he says. I don’t understand that. I would assume that someone would gather information and hand it out to you all. So, that you would have time to read through it all the night before, like we all do at our jobs if you have a meeting. And then you come in tonight and kind of have an idea of what’s going on and not just trusting what we say or he says.

Chairperson Cardone: We do have some of that information, we have the Order to Remedy Violation which came from the Code Enforcement Department, we have a letter from the applicant’s Attorney stating their side of the story. Generally speaking, when something comes before us, we have the papers that the applicant has filled out. When there is a public hearing that’s the time for the public to give us other information that we wouldn’t have in these papers. That is purpose of notifying all of the neighbors so that they can come out and tell us what they see what going on in the neighborhood because although we make site visits, we are there for a few minutes, we are not there all day long or all night. You know, and sometimes when you go there, when I went there for instance, I don’t know what the other Members saw when they went, when I went there I didn’t see big trucks that you were talking about. I did see two vehicles parked there on that particular day.

Neighbor #1: So, tomorrow morning at 6:45, come to my house, I’ll have coffee and breakfast. You’ll all come in and sit at my big new kitchen window and watch what’s going on. I am asking that you as a group, get together, make a decision, call Code Compliance, tell them tonight, let them stop, close it down until October when this man and his Attorney feels its O.K. for them to come up here. We got to live with this another 30 days, this is crazy. We have been complaining for 10 months. Something is going to happen, if something happens to one of these kids, her daughter, my daughter, me and in the next 30 days, do you know what is going to happen? There is going to be a problem. So, I am just telling you that there is going to be a problem because it keeps happening and you’ve got people here that are paying taxes. Is this man paying taxes on the business that he is running out of there? No. All I am asking you is that you got to make a decision and as the Zoning Board of Appeals you should have some authority to get together, go to the Code Compliance tomorrow morning and tape them up, close them down until October, that is all we are asking. That’s it and then we will come back and do our thing again next month.

Mr. Manley: Neighbor #1, if I could just add something and I understand and I appreciate your frustration and everybody here that serves on this Board lives in the Town so we have a vested interest with what …

Neighbor #1: But you don’t live in my 

Mr. Manley: I understand and I am faced with a similar thing, I have a business right behind where my house is that unfortunately is now grand fathered there and I have to live. So, I can appreciate what you are going through. I certainly want to make a decision and I’d love to make a decision tonight and if that’s possible, that’s the route I want to go. But, at the same time I want to make sure procedurally that whatever decision I make, I can’t speak for the rest of the Board Members, but whatever decision I make, whatever side it rests on I want to make sure that that decision is going to stand, at least, my vote.

Because, if I make a decision and that decision is arbitrary and capricious; it can be overturned in the Court.

Neighbor #1: I know that, we heard this from Wayne five months in a row.

Mr. Manley: And my concern, O.K. but I am just telling you from my perspective …

Neighbor #1: Because if you mess it up …

Mr. Manley: I don’t want to be in a situation where a decision is made and my decision or my vote gets over turned because it’s arbitrary and capricious because I didn’t hear all of the facts and that to me is very, very important.

Neighbor #1: O.K. so, now you have the facts, now you get the work, you’ve got everything you need, somewhere along the line somebody has got to stand up and say we are going to take the chance here and close them down. Stand up, this is your Town like you just said …, 

Mr. Manley: I agree with you.

Neighbor #1: Stand up, make a stand and do it. I have the Zoning book. It’s illegal. If I was growing things like pot in my yard, you would have me arrested. So, why not him?

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We really can’t be debating this back and forth at this point. And, at no point have we said that we were not making a decision this evening. We don’t know whether or not we are going to be making a decision this evening. Right now what we are conducting is the public hearing part of this. And, the public hearing is so that we can get all the information that is available. Yes?

Neighbor #4: I have to agree with her. If this guy is going to get shut down, we got to shut him down for good. On the other hand, because of the safety situation in the neighborhood with the kids, there has been and I am not blaming it on them but it just seems like very ironic that we had a storm drain break about a week or so ago and that truck does go over that storm drain. Somebody could have driven into it, except somebody saw it. In fact, it’s in that picture because it’s got the cones on either side of it. But, on a safety point of view, could they be stopped temporarily without violating what he suggested? I am just wondering if there is a way to shut them down without violating anybodies rights and still be able to do this properly the way he suggested? I do agree with him, he is right. As far as doing it so that it’s permanently done and not have to go back and visit again.

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: You have to understand; there is two parts to this. We’re a review Board. We are supposed to rule on what’s brought before us. What Code Compliances does and the Police do and what the Building Department does is completely separate from our entity. So, we are a review Board and we are here to rule on what’s brought before us. When these get rejected the Building Inspector sites the Section of the Law and why it was rejected. We, all of us, every Member here goes out to the site and looks at the entire neighborhood, all the property surrounding it and everything so that we know the physical and geographical location and the public hearing fills in all the blanks that we don’t know about. So, to answer your question, there is nothing that we can do here except make recommendations to the Building Department, this Town Supervisor and other agencies that oversee these processes. 

Neighbor #4: So, whatever recommendation you come up with the Code Compliance Department enforces. 

Mr. Hughes: They don’t have to, they just take it in advisement. We can’t make them do anything.

Neighbor #4: I am trying to understand, be a little patient with me, when we are going to Code Compliance they are saying to come here. And, now you are saying that we have to ….

Mr. Hughes: This is the first part of it, when it is rejected or there is a problem you come here and everybody says their piece. Then, we rule on it. What we send back to them, they don’t have to take into advisement or they can consider it. We have too much cross discussion going on here.

Neighbor #4: I am just trying to understand the situation that’s all.

Chairperson Cardone: Neighbor #7.

Neighbor #7: Just two things you are supposed to be voting on, the petition. You know when the young lady sold in 1999 or when they got rid of it, this gentleman didn’t get grand fathered in because you don’t get grand fathered in. It goes back to the former use in a residential neighborhood so they can’t run a commercial business out of it. Right from ’99 and on, a lot of you people have been on the Board since then, that place has not been before you to be made commercial. That’s the interpretation, it has to be clearer. The second part of the variance, it’s a residential neighborhood; it doesn’t need to have a commercial business trade. They don’t need an Attorney to argue the case, the interpretation is clear, they weren’t grand fathered in, they don’t have a variance showing that were grand fathered in or else I am sure this gentleman would have it tonight. And, I can’t remember one being on the books and I was on the Zoning Board for a while. They were never before me when I was on the Zoning Board. Grace has been there. Ruth has been there. And, the other part of it, the variance, they are running a commercial business in a residential neighborhood with trucks. The gentleman that just bought the property on the corner wants to put boulders up there because the tractor trailers are driving across his lawn all the time and he wants to put up 2-family houses. So, I mean it’s clear, it’s simple.

Chairperson Cardone: The issue, Neighbor #7, on the interpretation is, as I stated before, whether or not it has been in continuous use because that’s the way that it reads. If a year had gone by that it was not used as a storage area, then it would not be able to be used as a storage area. However, if it was continuously used as a storage area, it would be able to. So, that’s actually the interpretation that we’d be voting on.

(Audience murmurs erupted)

Chairperson Cardone:  I am giving you the legal …

Neighbor #6: So, if somebody does something that is illegal for a year and he is grand fathered in?

Chairperson Cardone: No, no, no.

Neighbor #6: That’s what it sounds like.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Neighbor #6: You used it for 5 years as a storage area, so its

Chairperson Cardone: It was a storage area, it was grand fathered as a storage area as long as it kept that use continuously and that’s what we are determining tonight in the interpretation. Was it kept continuously as a storage area? That’s the interpretation.

Mr. Gailey: That’s part of the testimony that my client would give.

Chairperson Cardone: That is the issue. It’s a fine legal point, but it’s what we have to determine this evening.

Neighbor #6: I own a garage and I store my car in it, so that means tomorrow I can start selling garage doors out of it. Yep, how about that? I hope you folks live by precedent, I really do.

Neighbor #2: Yeah really, I am not impressed, that’s for sure.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Neighbor  #10: O.K., so, you are going to make a recommendation say in our favor and take it to whoever you take it to, Code Enforcement and Code Enforcement decides they are not going to do anything about it. What’s our alternative?

Chairperson Cardone: I have to correct something that was said, because if fact, it’s not a recommendation to Code Enforcement. If it is determined that it was not continuously used as a storage, then the next thing that we would be voting on would be the variance that they are requesting. If that variance were denied then it would have to be shut down by Code Enforcement. There would be no, not that they felt like it, it would have to be.

Neighbor #1: O.K., there’s one more thing I got. When you got that paperwork, when you get the paperwork as to what’s going to be on this Agenda, first of all there never is an Agenda from this Zoning of Appeals, I know that every day, three times a day, never. But you have to know.

Chairperson Cardone: There’s never an Agenda?

Neighbor #1: Well, there is not an Agenda on the Internet ***, I had no idea, I got my letter  but there was nothing on there. But let me ask you something, when did you find out that this man wanted an interpretation on this, a week ago? Nobody thought about hey, let me go in and let me check this out as a group, let’s find out so we don’t have to go through this?

Chairperson Cardone: We can’t go as a group because, …

Neighbor #1: All right, individually.

Chairperson Cardone: Individually, that’s how we visit the properties.

Neighbor #1: But in my job when I do research I am being presented to a group, I mean, you have to go ahead of time. What you have to do, so you do a little research. Did you not, did anybody not look into this and see if it’s been used for anything other than storage in the last ten (10) years? No, in the records of the Town, does it not tell you that?

Chairperson Cardone: No, the records in the Town wouldn’t tell you that.

Neighbor #1: So, how are you going to find this out?

Mr. Hughes: We ask you.

Mr. Kunkel: We are hearing it.

Ms Eaton: We ask you.

Chairperson Cardone: We ask you.

Mr. Hughes: That’s what the purpose of this is.

Neighbor #1: Now we’re saying it’s been garage, it’s been storage, it’s never been a building. She has been here 50 years, now what? This is what we are saying, we are not getting anywhere. You keep saying we have to check into it. There is ruling is absolutely on our side; there is nothing to check into. Cause you’re asking our opinion, we are telling you since there is no records in Town Hall.

Chairperson Cardone: And that’s the purpose of a Public Hearing so that the neighbors can give information and opinion. That is the purpose of the Public Hearing.

Neighbor #1: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: There is a gentleman, who …

Neighbor #11: Neighbor #11, I live on             Avenue and I understand what you are saying, but, she owned the building. She stored her cars in it, just like I would have a garage. Now someone bought the building, is renting the building, so, now they are making money on it. So, now they have a business plus a business. So, it’s changed. It’s not the same. If she is using it as her private stuff cause she owns it, it’s one thing. Now somebody is renting it to somebody else. So, that’s all I have to say.

Neighbor #2: They have just ruined the storm drains. Two storm drains these tractors ruined. It’s unbelievable.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anything else? Any new information from the public?

Neighbor #12: I would just like to know when we would be able, when do we find out if we can have a special meeting within the next week or two, is that possible?

Chairperson Cardone: I would have to check with the Town Clerk to see the availability, I would have to ask the members of the Board. We will be discussing with the Attorney.

After the Public Hearing, maybe I should explain this a little better to you. We need to hear from each of the Applicants this evening in the Public Hearing. After the Public Hearing is closed, then we will meet with our Attorney. After that, we will then come back and make our decisions on the different items that we’ve heard this evening. And, as a part of that is when we could talk about whether or not to have a special meeting.

Neighbor #12: The only other thing I would like to request is that in order to protect our children and our neighborhood, I would like to have you request a Patrol Car at corner every morning, so that our buses and our children can do what they are supposed to do every morning if we anything else from you. Can we request a Patrol Car on that corner every single morning and afternoon? 

Chairperson Cardone: We can request anything, whether or not that is acknowledged certainly …

Mr. Manley: Madame Chair, if I could make a recommendation and that would be whoever maybe from your group who wants to be a point-person and certainly that is an extremely valid safety concern with respect to children. I would recommend that your contact Deputy Chief John Mahoney and you can reach him at the Town of Newburgh Police Department 564-1100 and let him know exactly what is happening in your neighborhood. Whether or not a business is operating there or not, any type of conduct like that is completely unacceptable. If that was happening in anybody’s neighborhood with children, especially today, that needs to be addressed and he will, I am sure, make sure that somebody gets out there and reviews that. And, in fact, if you would like let him know that I asked you to call.

Chairperson Cardone:  Yes.

Neighbor #13: Why didn’t he come here tonight, I was just wondering why? There is 100% attendance of the whole neighborhood. It’s his (inaudible), why is he not here tonight?

Mr. Gailey: As I explained at the beginning, maybe you weren’t here, the Attorney in my office who was handling this and is familiar with it could not attend tonight. So, we didn’t have proper representation for Mr. Coatti and it was my understanding that if I requested that the adjournment that would be granted and we would go forward at the next meeting. So, although Mr. Coatti is at home and he is not here tonight to testify and we are perfectly willing to go forward though as the soon as the Board finds enough room and      . 

Audience Member #2: Excuse me, Ladies & Gentlemen, I am not sympathetic to what is going on here.

Ms. Gennarelli: I am sorry, could you identify yourself?

Audience Member #2:  Every thing is going back over and over and over again and I am making a suggestion that the Board make a ruling and we can get on with other business that has to be taken care of tonight. (took name during the determine session)

Chairperson Cardone: I understand your concern and that’s what I was trying to explain before. We can’t right at this point make a decision. We have to hear each of the applicants for the Public Hearing and that’s what I was trying to explain and asking if there was any new information. Because if there is new information we certainly want to hear it, but I think we have heard, I think what we are hearing is a repeat of items that we have already heard before. And, I would be quite anxious to move on to the other applicants so that we can get to the point where we would be able to make a decision.

Neighbor #3: Can I just say one thing? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Neighbor #3: 30 days is a long time.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, I know that.

Neighbor #3: O.K. It is getting darker in the morning. And, if you could see these innocent 12 and 13-year-old girls that have been standing at the corner, the neighborhood used to be, if you could just see them, they are so innocent. All right. And, having that activity there and trying to pick these girls up. You know what we’d have within 30 days. Why can’t you put a temporary pause on him? Something. I mean your not saying shut down. What if they investigate and tell him he needs to shut down operations while your investigating because it is just a shame. I have to go out of my way and drive my daughter to school when I am paying taxes for that School Bus and I can’t even use it. And, I never had to do this before. I have been living there 10 years and I never had to do this.

Chairperson Cardone: We understand those concerns.

Neighbor #3: She has to come off the school bus by herself and I work in Rockland and am a nervous wreck waiting for her to call me because these people…what I don’t get is if it is commercial, O.K., there should be none of this taking a month or anything. It’s residential. What is there to even discuss? It’s a business. It’s a business.

Chairperson Cardone:  As I said before, if we have any new information, please give us the information. We have listened to every thing that you have said this evening and all of the Board Members I think heard everything that has been said and we will consider all of that in making a decision.

Neighbor #3: But, why should we wait 30 days when this is something serious going on now. This is something serious; if they all say something fishy going on there and months and months are going by and all it takes …

Chairperson Cardone:  As I said we are not an enforcement Board, we are not an enforcement Board and we are not. And, so, we are listening to what you have to say, we will make a decision and that decision will then be put in the hands of those who are able to enforce these things. In the mean time, do I have a motion to keep the public part of this hearing open? We may want to re visit it after 

 Chairperson Cardone: The Board is requesting a short determine to meet with Counsel and at this time we will go into another room to meet with Counsel over legal questions then we will resume the Public Hearing.









(Time Noted 8:02PM)
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Resumption of Public Hearing from determine 
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28 WARING ROAD, NBGH










(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone:  The Board is resuming its meeting, the Public Hearing that is scheduled for today. And, do I have a motion?

Mr. Manley: I would like to just ask a clarification of the Attorney, Counsel to the Board, closing the hearing versus holding it open, what potential ramifications the decision could make if the Hearing were to be closed.

Ms. Martini: The problem with closing the Hearing at this moment is that the applicant, who has a right and an opportunity to be heard, is not here. You may be making a decision prematurely without getting all the facts from his side. We are quasi judicial Zoning Board and a much fuller decision and complete decision, one that is not arbitrary and capricious is better made when you have both sides presenting their issues and rebutting whatever has to be said and for that reason, as explained, I would advise the Board that you keep the Public Hearing open so that both sides can be heard.

Mr. Manley: So, Carolyn would that I understand it in my terms, is that kind of similar then, for example, a trial where you have a prosecution and a defense. 

Ms. Martini: Similar.

Mr. Manley: And, the prosecution makes their case as to why the person should potentially be found guilty of something and the defense doesn’t get to make their case as to why their client is not guilty.

Ms. Martini: Very similar. That is the same idea. We are here to determine the facts, we are quasi judicial and that’s why I want to explain to the public the reason why I would advise that you keep this Public Hearing open. 

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone:  The suggestion was made that we hold a Hearing in the very near future. There are some legal issues concerned with that. In order to have a Meeting, as I had stated before, I would first have to find out the availability of the Members of the Board and the availability of the room to hold the meeting in. At which point the Public would by law would have to notified in the two weekly newspapers 10 days prior to the Hearing. This would probably bring us to, since the one paper only publishes on Wednesday, would bring us almost to the date our regular meeting would be. And, that’s providing all Members were available for that week anyway. So, I really don’t know that it would be feasible to hold a Meeting before our next scheduled Meeting, which would be October the 26th. 

Mr. Kunkel: With as much as I would like to see us reach a decision this evening, believe me I would, I recognize that if we moved ahead and did so against the legal advise given us, it would leave us open to an unfavorable court ruling which would bring about the very thing that the members of the audience are attempting to stop. So, I reluctantly I will make a motion that this Hearing be held open until the next meeting of this Board.

Chairperson Cardone:  Which is October the 26th.

Mr. Kunkel: Correct.

Mr. Manley: I will reluctantly second that motion with the additional comment that regardless if the applicant is available or not that October 26th I will vote to close the Public Hearing and at that point take all the information and move forward with a decision. So, I would make sure that your client and also the client’s representative is here on October 26th because that is the final date.

Neighbor #1: Are we going to have the registered letters sent again, I think that’s very important?

Chairperson Cardone:  When the Meeting is held open, when the Public Hearing is held open it is not necessary to then notify everyone. They have been notified at the meeting.

Neighbor #1: All right, so that will be my job to. That’s fine.

Chairperson Cardone:  Right. O.K. we have a motion on the floor and a second, could we have a roll call on that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  No

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.                        (Time noted – 8:30 P.M.)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006                             (Time Noted – 8:30 PM)

MARTIN LEGENOS



195 PRESSLER ROAD, WALLKILL







(6-1-1.1) A-R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to keep a prior built breezeway that connected the detached accessory structure to the main dwelling.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Martin Legenos, 195 Pressler Road, Wallkill. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: All the mailings were in order.

Mr. Legenos: Hello Board, I am Martin Legenos from 195 Pressler Road, I am asking the Board for a variance. I built a breezeway or I want to have a breezeway between my garage, I am asking for a variance to connect the garage to the house. The variances, I am too close to the footages from the property line.

Chairperson Cardone: At what point had you constructed the garage? You had a permit for the garage?

Mr. Legenos: Yes in 2000 when I built the garage in 2000, I put a (inaudible) slab between the house and the garage thinking that one day I will connect the two and …

Chairperson Cardone: Not realizing once that it was connected you have to have a different amount of …?

Mr. Legenos: I thought back then, in 2000, that it was only 15 feet and I left …

Chairperson Cardone: It was for an accessory structure, once it became a part of the main building by connecting it …

Mr. Legenos: It was 5 feet back in 2000.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Legenos: But I thought it was 15 feet for a connected garage and that’s why I left it 15 feet off the property line and I am asking to see if I could overturn that and have that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Legenos: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:32 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:37 PM)

MARTIN LEGENOS
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(6-1-1.1) A-R ZONE 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming our regular meeting. On our first application Martin Legenos at 195 Pressler Road seeking an area variance to a side yard setback to keep a prior built breezeway that connected the detached accessory structure to the main dwelling. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: I think it would be a very positive move for the neighborhood and I move that we approve this application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 38 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006                              (Time Noted – 8:32 PM)

KENNETH N. MILLER


11 SADDLE PLACE, NBGH 







(58-4-4) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front porch.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Kenneth N. Miller, 11 Saddle Place, Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Miller: How are we doing tonight? My name is Kenneth Miller and I would like to put a front porch on the front of my house and it affects the front setback. It affects the 40 ft that is needed. The corner of my house is 40 ft.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, what are the dimensions of the porch that you are planning to construct. I see it says 8 ft, but it doesn’t say 8 ft by what?

Mr. Miller: About 24 ft the length of the front.

Chairperson Cardone: The length of the house?

Mr. Miller: The front there.

Chairperson Cardone: Would it be a covered porch? Covered?

Mr. Miller: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board?

Ms. Eaton: As you are facing the house it would be the right side where you are putting this?

Mr. Miller: The right side underneath the window and the front door.

Ms. Eaton: And, then you are covering it?

Mr. Miller: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: It won’t interfere with the window?

Mr. Miller: No, maam.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public?  Yes.

Neighbor #1: My name is Neighbor #1,     Coach Lane, Newburgh. I have known the Millers since I moved in ’99 and I find no problem with having the Board grant the variance for them to put up a covered porch. It would only enhance the neighborhood. Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Miller: Thank you. Thank you for your time.

(Time Noted – 8:34 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:38 PM)
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(58-4-4) R-2 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Kenneth Miller, 11 Saddle Place seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a front porch. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: It certainly going to set a standard for the neighborhood as far as appeal.

Ms. Eaton: It will give the house a finished look.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion.

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.             (Time noted - 9: 39 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 8:34 PM)
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(2-1-37.1) R/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, lot building coverage, increasing degree and new non-conformity to renovate and build 2-story addition to home.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Norma Perez, 1031 Route 32, Wallkill. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order.

Ms. Perez: My name is Norma Perez and I ..

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak right into the mic, maybe lower it a little bit? It comes right off.

Ms. Perez: My name is Norma Perez and I came here to renovate my whole house and put another two additions attached to the house.

Chairperson Cardone: The additions that you are adding to the house are not bringing you any closer to the highway than the house currently is, is that correct?

Ms. Perez: That is correct.

Ms. Eaton:  It will be a 1-family house?

Ms. Perez: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: You currently own the house?

Ms. Perez: Hm hm (yes)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Since this property is within 500 ft of a State Highway, I have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning and their recommendation in this case; the proposed action of three area variances for three-sided addition will not have any impact upon the State or County facilities. Nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. Any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Ms. Eaton: Do you have municipal sewer and water?

Ms. Perez: Excuse me?

Ms. Eaton: Do you have municipal sewer and water services?

Chairperson Cardone: Town water, Town sewer?

Ms. Perez: No, it’s a well.

Chairperson Cardone: You have a well?

Ms. Perez: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And a septic system?

Ms. Perez: Hm, hm, yes. 

Ms. Eaton: How many bedrooms will be in this house?

Ms. Perez: There will be four.

Ms. Eaton: What size septic system do you have?

Ms. Perez: Uh, I gave in all the information; I have no idea, because this is my first time.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a septic system existing there now, that you know of?

Ms. Perez: Yes, but they told me that I had to make a new one.

Mr. Hughes: So, your tank is going to have to be a 1500-gallon tank?

Ms. Perez: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: The rest of stuff is explanatory on there.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions.

Ms. Perez: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Neighbor #1: Are the house drawings available to the public?

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, could you please state your name and address and then…?

Neighbor #1: Neighbor #1,        Route 32, I am the property adjacent to this owner.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Neighbor #1: Could I look at the drawings?

Chairperson Cardone: We don’t have drawings, do you have drawings with you of the?

Ms. Perez: Pictures?

Chairperson Cardone: What we have here, if you would come up here … (Neighbor #1  and Ms. Perez approached) This is the current structure right here and they are proposing addition on this side and on this side, this is 32 here. So they won’t be any closer to 32 than they already are. But, they are adding on to each end of the house here.

Neighbor #1: What is the Zoning?

Chairperson Cardone: And the reason that they are before us is because currently it’s not 40 feet from the road.

Neighbor #1: I understand that.

Chairperson Cardone: But anytime you add on to something like that even though it doesn’t come any closer it then brings you into compliance.

Neighbor #1: How many acres in this plot?

Mr. Hughes: One acre.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, what they’re, the schedule allows for a 10% lot coverage and this will bring them at a 12% lot coverage, so they will be 2% over on the lot coverage.

Neighbor #1: That is breaking the law.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s why they’re here for a variance on that. They are here for a variance, it’s a 2% over.

Neighbor #1: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Which is not considerable. But, that’s what it is. O.K., you can take the mic with you and speak into the mic so we can get it onto the tape.

Neighbor #1: Now, the way I look at it, the Zoning Board is there to make a decision on the present laws. The Zoning Board cannot change the laws to accommodate people.

Chairperson Cardone: I need to just correct you. The Zoning Board is also here to give relief from the laws. Each person that is here before us tonight would not be in compliance with what they are planning to do. So, they have come to the Zoning Board to get relief so they are able to do that.

Neighbor #1: Well, I am in favor of the 2-family house. It’s been a 2-family house. It is, I think, a business district there.

Mr. Manley: It’s an R/R Zone, Reservoir/Residential.

Neighbor #1: Now, if they build a bigger house than the lot is supposed to hold, they are asking for a variance. Now once you grant one variance, even a 1%, you’re breaking the law. And, that’s what I am against. Is there anything in the laws that say the Zoning Board can grant a variance on lot house size comparison to lot by a certain percentage or is it just for the Board to do?

Chairperson Cardone: It is for the Board to decide.

Neighbor #1: Well, I disagree with that. I can see a variance granted for something that is not caused by the applicant. But, existing conditions. But, not when the applicant can change the law to satisfy them. If they cut the house size down by 2%, they’re within the law. I am not objecting to the 2-family house. And, even though they are too close to the road, that house was there before and they have got every right to rebuild it. And, they can put extensions on it and they have to meet the other requirements of any building that they have. They will probably take care of their well and their septic system within; they have got enough property for it that is for the Board of Health to decide and the Building Inspector. But I do not like Zoning Boards making the change to the law that the applicant has committed, not committed, but planning to do. If they cut this house size down, very good. If they go up, I don’t think there is a height problem there. But we cannot have the Zoning Board turn around and say well, we will put a bigger house there, it’s only a little bit more. The next person can say I can go a little bit more than that. The first thing you know we have a city here. That’s what I am objecting to.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Neighbor #1: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other comments from the public? Any comments, questions from the Board?

Mr. Kunkel: Your intent is to remove the existing garage?

Ms. Perez: Yes. We are going to remove that, totally remove.

Mr. Kunkel: And, that is a sizable building as I see it. Do you know what the size of that garage is, the one you are going to tear down?

Ms. Perez: The one that is there?

Mr. Kunkel: Yes.

Ms. Perez: No.

Mr. Kunkel: Roughly?

Ms. Perez: Yes, but we are going to remove that.

Chairperson Cardone: It looks to be roughly the size of the addition on the top. A different shape, but slightly larger.

Mr. Kunkel: Yeah, it looks like it’s equal to or slightly larger than one of the additions you are proposing.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments, questions from the Board? 

Mr. Manley: Was the impervious surface calculation and I don’t know that you will have the answer to this, your representative isn’t here this evening, correct?

Mr. Perez: When I contact my, whoever do the drawings … 

Chairperson Cardone: The contractor?

Ms. Perez: The contractor? He said he is going to come over and I wait for him for over a year and he never did. So that’s why I take care of myself because he never came over here to do it, I paid him and I wait for those things over a year.

Mr. Manley: O.K. What I am trying to look at, is whether or not the, in the calculation of your impervious surface whether or not he removed the calculation of the garage out of that. Because, if he didn’t then you may not be at 12%, you may be less than 12%. And I don’t know from the information that was submitted, whether or not that was done or not. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have the actual plans there or do you have exactly what we have here? The miniature?

Mr. Manley: The miniature, yes. Here is the larger one. They are not in there.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board?

Ms. Perez: I have the additional plans; he gave me another set of plans, in case there was a problem with those. But he made me another ones, big ones to go with this. He said with this one you are not going to have any problems.

Chairperson Cardone: And the gentleman who wanted to see the plan, would you like to come and see what the actual house will look like?

Ms. Perez and Neighbor #1 approached and he was explained the current house plans and the removal of the old garage.

Chairperson Cardone: And the question that Mr. Manley was asking when they figured the 12% did they add in the garage that’s currently on the property that’s going to be torn down? 

Neighbor #1: I’d hate to see changes in the law. But. there was a law stating there can be just so much.

Chairperson Cardone: Any decision that the Zoning Board makes in any of these does not change the law, it only stands for that particular item that’s before us. So, if we grant somebody a variance, each person who comes here tonight actually is doing something that would be against what the Code is. That’s why they are here. But when we grant relief it only goes for that particular applicant, that particular case and it does not mean that in the future everyone can do that. The law is not changed. You know we cannot change the law; we can only give relief from the Code.

Ms. Perez: I know that I could move it the house to the center but I don’t have enough money to, I only have enough money to renovate the house that is already there and put on additions.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Eaton: It’s only going to be a 1-family house.

Ms. Perez: It’s only a 1-family house.

Ms. Eaton: A 1-family, not a 2-family.

Neighbor #1: It was a 2-family house.

Ms. Eaton: It was a 2-family.

Ms. Perez: Now it’s going to be a 1-family.

Neighbor #1: Oh.

Ms. Perez: Only 1-family. Yes, but I don’t have the money to move it. I don’t have enough to move the whole house, that’s why I just want to renovate it and fix it properly.

Neighbor #1: That is properly understandable.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other questions, comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:50 PM)

 ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:39 PM)

NORMA PEREZ



1031 ROUTE 32, WALLKILL







(2-1-37.1) R/R ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Norma Perez, 1031 Route 32 seeking area variances for a front yard setback, lot building coverage, increasing degree and new non-conformity to renovate and build 2-story addition to home. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: The update of the home certainly is going to add to area as far as making it look a lot better than what its looked like for years, it’s been run down. My only concern, and I’d be willing to put it in the form of a motion that we approve the variance with two conditions. Condition number one, in my motion that the garage that’s on the property that is showing on the drawings that’s going to be removed, to be removed. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And, a second condition that I would say if we were to grant this would be that the home not be converted or used as a 2-family residence. And the only other third caveat if the Board would want is to make sure that the septic meets the necessary requirements for the number of Bedrooms in the home.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: They are indicating 4 bedrooms on the print and I would like to add to it, if it was going to be a duplex for 2-families don’t they require a hundred thousand square feet. There is not enough property there for a 2-family, so it’s out of the question. I don’t know if the caveat or the conditions are necessary on that for the lack of square footage.

Mr. Manley: But, if we put that in there they would have to come before the Board for a variance if they wanted to go to a 2-family, they would have to come back before the Board. But, I wanted it put in the minutes, in the motion

Mr. Hughes: I know you said it on the floor.

Mr. Manley: … that it would not be used at all as a 2-family so that in the future if a future Zoning Board is sitting and they pulled the minutes, they’ll see that this Board was not in favor of having it as a 2-family and not granting that variance.

Mr. Hughes: You could put that in there, but I think it’s a mute point.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second to Mr. Manley’s motion?

Mr. Hughes: I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 41 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 8:50 PM)

MICHAEL DOOLEY



30 REVERE ROAD, NBGH







(17-2-3.37) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to erect a garage (4 cars maximum allowed and accessory buildings formula).

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Michael Dooley, 30 Revere Road, Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Dooley: Hello, ladies and gentlemen, I am Michael Dooley and I here for a variance for a larger; I guess a second garage accessory building formula. I guess you’re allowed 1000 sq ft and mine is 1140.

Chairperson Cardone: You currently have a 2-car garage.

Mr. Dooley: Attached to the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Now the garage that you’re thinking of constructing is not being added onto the house?

Mr. Dooley: No.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s going to be, as you come into your driveway there is a backhoe or a …

Mr. Dooley: Down past that.

Chairperson Cardone: Past that?

Mr. Dooley: Down past that in the back. Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. down where it slopes off, goes off in the back?

Mr. Dooley: Right. Which is, I think, it’s 160 ft or more from the garage to driveway back into the woods.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. At that point you would have a 6 car, total of 6 cars garage.

Mr. Dooley: Well, it’s for 3 and a boat. I don’t have 6 cars.

Chairperson Cardone: You currently have two-car garage in the house.

Mr. Dooley: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: How many square feet is your house?

Mr. Dooley: 2400. But, I currently have 3 antique classic cars, antique or classic and all registered, insured.

Chairperson Cardone: And, your current garage you use that as a garage?

Mr. Dooley: For the primary vehicles, for they are in there and our regular primary vehicles are outside. But, I want to put the primary vehicles back in there and use that just as cold storage.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any way that you could, if you were able to construct this 4-car garage that you could then change the 2-car garage that you have into a different kind of a space rather than a 2-car garage?

Mr. Dooley: Could I, is that what you are asking? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Dooley: I suppose anything is possible, but no that’s not …

Chairperson Cardone: That’s not what you wanted to do?

Mr. Dooley: Not even thought. No, I don’t need any more room in the house by any means.

Chairperson Cardone: Well, I mean I can’t speak for all the Board Members but I am feeling that the Code is talking about four (4) cars maximum and six (6) I think is going quite a bit over.

Mr. Hughes: One of the things to that you said in your opening there was that you’re allowed to 1000 sq ft. Now that’s the maximum and there is a formula that they determine that you can get up to 1000 sq ft. Part of that formula is the square footage of the house, the other parts of it are the gross area of the lot, the livable sq ft of the house, the minimum requirement in the district for one side yard and the total square footage permitted for all accessory buildings. And, when you play that formula out it looks like you are only entitled to 980 ft to begin with, even with the lot size and the house size. And, if you would like to review how that formula is computed, it’s in the Code at Section 185-15 section 4 and that formula here indicates to us what we are supposed to adhere to for guidelines in calculating that formula and the opinion of what we are allowed to give you. But, even before it gets to the square footage of what we are allowed to give you by relief, you can only have a maximum of a four (4)-car garage on a residential installation. So, I think what our Chairperson is trying to pass to you, if you can take what’s in your house already and alter it into something other than a garage then we can give you a four (4)-car garage in the accessory building. We can’t give you six (6) between the two of them. Is that clear?

Mr. Dooley: I think so.

Mr. Hughes: If you would like to see the formula and you would like to interject those numbers of the formula and work it yourself …

Mr. Dooley: I think they gave that to me on a piece of paper.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Do you have those numbers in front of you, cause I didn’t ….

Mr. Dooley: No, no, it was on one of the sheets that I got from …   

Mr. Hughes: Did you look and see if it was calculated?

Mr. Dooley: No, they gave me, because it was Schedule A or something on Accessory Building.

Chairperson Cardone: 185-15-A-4

Mr. Hughes: As long as you understand what we are restricted by here with the formula. So, 1000 feet you would have to have a lot more land or a lot less of a house for us to allow you to use 1000 feet.

Mr. Manley: Would the accessory structure have any utilities in it?

Mr. Dooley: No.

Mr. Manley: None, no electric?

Mr. Dooley: No electric. No water. No insulation. No anything, just cold storage for the vehicles.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:55 PM) 

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:41 PM)

MICHAEL DOOLEY



30 REVERE ROAD, NBGH







(17-2-3.37) A/R ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael Dooley at 30 Revere Road, seeking an area variance to erect a garage which exceeds the 4 cars maximum and also the accessory buildings formula. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think that his requests are way overboard in both the square footage of the building and according to the calculations of the formula and due to the fact that the limit is a 4-car garage. He is asking for a 6 and about 400 sq ft over. So, I can’t go along with that.

Mr. Kunkel: I concur with that evaluation.

Mr. Hughes: It’s way too much. I would suggest a reconfiguration.

Chairperson Cardone: So that it doesn’t exceed the 4-car limit.

Mr. Hughes: And it doesn’t exceed the square footage either.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for a disapproval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I’ll move we disapprove.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 42 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 8:55 PM)

VIRGINIA AGOSTO



28 DELAWARE ROAD, NBGH 







(54-1-14) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity to keep a prior built rear deck.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Virginia Agosto, 28 Delaware Road, Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Ms. Agosto: My request is to keep a pre-existing deck that’s in the back of my house and I think it’s a little bit too large than the variance requires. So I am requesting a variance to keep it the size it is.

Chairperson Cardone: When was this deck constructed?

Ms. Agosto: The deck and the porch was constructed, I guess, I don’t know when, it was there when I bought it.

Mr. Manley: How long have you lived at the residence?

Ms. Agosto: Since 2000.

Mr. Manley: Since 2000, so, 6 years almost?

Ms. Agosto: What happened was, I was applying for a mortgage and they requested for the permit for the deck and porch. And I said I don’t have one because it was there. So, I tried to get a permit so, guess I had to go through all this.

Chairperson Cardone: That should have been discovered when the house was sold.

Ms. Agosto: No, it wasn’t, not even the porch.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I am concerned about the proximity to the drainage easement there, your front line when they did the deck and there is sort of appendage or 10 ft wide drainage use on two sides of this property. If you look at this diagram, you’ll see that where the deck is indicated is right on the edge of that easement. I don’t have a problem with that specifically if the Town doesn’t but that’s a Town easement.

Chairperson Cardone: But it doesn’t go into the easement?

Mr. Hughes: No.

Chairperson Cardone: Just goes right onto the edge.

Mr. Hughes: On the edge, like it’s a  (inaudible) line.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions, comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Ms. Agosto: Thank you. Do I need to stay?

Chairperson Cardone: You can leave or stay it’s up to you.

Ms. Agosto: A decision is not going to be made today, right?

Chairperson Cardone: It may be.

Ms. Agosto: It may be?

Chairperson Cardone: We never know that till we get ready to make the decisions.

Ms. Agosto: O.K. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:57 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:42 PM)

VIRGINIA AGOSTO



28 DELAWARE ROAD, NBGH 







(54-1-14) R-2 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Virginia Agosto at 28 Delaware Road, seeking a area variance for a side yard setback and increasing the degree of non-conformity to keep a prior built rear deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll move for approval.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 43 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 8:58 PM)

PETER M. BURGER



20 NEVERSINK DRIVE, NBGH







(54-4-6) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the height of an accessory structure to build a 9’8” X 19’8” shed.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Peter M. Burger, 20 Neversink Drive, Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order both on the addition and the shed both on the addition and the shed.

Chairperson Cardone: First we will hear the variance for the height variance for the accessory structure.

Mr. Burger: Hi, I am Pete Burger, 20 Neversink Drive. The shed I proposed, I think I might have done myself a disservice when I drew that drawing. I actually showed it being taller than it actually is. The shed I am proposing faces the rear yard, rather than facing the street. Right. Do you have a copy of the plan to look at?

Chairperson Cardone: I have, this drawing right here?

Mr. Burger: I have a plan.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I did visit the site too.

Mr. Burger: Specifically, showing built the top of the (inaudible) wall; I showed an extra foot  (inaudible) for a total of just about 15 feet. If you look at the plot plan, the shed is going to be facing the back of my lot not facing the street and at that point, the door of the shed, the shed is only 11 feet tall from there. But, apparently this is determined from the street side of the shed.

Chairperson Cardone: And your property goes up…

Mr. Burger: And, it’s built into a slope, so on the street side, the side which is actually the back of my shed is going to be facing the street. It’s more than 15 feet tall, because it’s built into a slope.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. But, the actual shed itself is 11 feet.

Mr. Burger: The actual shed itself is 11 ft 4, something like that or 11 ft 6 from ground level at the opening, the door opening.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions on this, right now we are just considering the height variance? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. 

(Time Noted – 9:00 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:43 PM)

PETER M. BURGER



20 NEVERSINK DRIVE, NBGH







(54-4-6) R-2 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Peter Burger, 20 Neversink Drive, seeking a height variance for an accessory structure. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? This was for the 15 ½ ft height and the ground was sloped in the back which caused the 11 ft building to be 15 feet above street level.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 44 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted - 9:00 PM)

PETER M. BURGER



20 NEVERSINK DRIVE, NBGH







(54-4-6) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity for lot width, lot depth, front yard, rear yard and side yards setbacks to build an addition and two decks on home. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, we will move on to the variance for the lot width, depth, front yard, rear yard, side yards setbacks to build an addition and two decks on the home. 

Mr. Burger: I don’t know if you have all been out to see it but the proposed addition is off the back of the house. It’s not going any closer to either side yard. Apparently at the time the house was built, it wasn’t required to be 15 feet from the property line. As you see by the sketch it’s 10 ft at the left front corner from the property line and it’s better than 12 ft at the back corner. So, as I go back farther with the addition it’ll be increasing the distance from existing property lines. It is only less than a 5 ft addition on the rear of the building plus decks.

Chairperson Cardone: And as you said, you wouldn’t be any closer to the side yard; in fact you would be further away.

Mr. Burger: I will actually going to be increasing the distance of the side yard, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Any other questions, comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 9:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:44 PM)

PETER M. BURGER



20 NEVERSINK DRIVE, NBGH







(54-4-6) R-2 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Peter Burger, 20 Neversink Drive, seeking an area variance to increase the degree of non-conformity for lot width, depth, front yard, rear yard and side yards setbacks to build an addition and two decks on the home. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: The side yard set backs aren’t being minimalized at all. You know they are just going back, which causing them to be non-conforming. But they are not asking for a big amount, they only want 5 feet for the structure, a very minimal amount. I don’t see a problem with it at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9: 46 PM)

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006                           (Time Noted – 9:46PM)

WILLIAM HILDRETH                    

    

296/298 LAKESIDE ROAD

SPOONER SUBDIVISION




 (50-1-49) NEW R-1 ZONE

ZBA APPROVAL RECEIVED FOR R-3 ZONE APPLICATION 2-23-06 – REAPPLYING FOR NEW R-1 ZONE FOR VARIANCES.

Area variances for existing lot with two houses into two (2) lot subdivision, variances for lot width, side yard setback and accessory building setbacks were required and approved to subdivide property with two existing single-family dwellings into a two-lot subdivision.

Area variance for lot area will be required.

Chairperson Cardone: We have two items that were held over from the August Meeting. The first was the William Hildreth-Spooner Subdivision at 296/298 Lakeside Road and they were seeking an area variance for the lot area for the existing lot with two house into a 2-lot subdivision. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion for approval on this application.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second for this?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  No

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: No

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: This motion fails for lack of a majority. A majority would be 4 of a 7 Member Board and the vote was 3 to 2.                   (Time noted - 9: 48 PM)                                                                                                    

ZBA MEETING – SEPTEMBER 28, 2006



(Time Noted – 9:03 PM)

OSTERGREN, CAROLE ANN


TAFT AVENUE, NBGH








(71-7-4) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking variance for side yard setbacks to keep a prior built shed barn on a 4-Lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: We have two items that were held over from last month. There was one item that needed further clarification. We needed to put something in the record. The question came up on the application for the area variances for Ostergren. The question was raised about the Planning Board and we have communication from the Planning Board. First, Mark Taylor had written a letter to the Planning Board, At the August 24th meeting, the Zoning Board of Appeals requested that I write to you regarding the application of Carole Ann Ostergren for area variances. During the public hearing on the area variances, the applicant’s representative advised the Board that the subdivision could be laid out utilizing a flag lot so as to avoid the need for area variances for minimum lot width for lots 2 and 3. He further advised, however, that the Planning Board had requested the configuration, which required the variances in lieu of the use of a flag lot. The Zoning Board desires confirmation of the Planning Board’s request to the applicant and an explanation of the planning reasons for the request, so that it may better understand and consider the application. Accordingly, the Zoning Board of Appeals would greatly appreciate your requesting a Planning Board consultant to forward a confirmation and explanation to Chairman Cardone. The Zoning Board of Appeals has put over its decision and requests a response to be provided prior to its scheduled September meeting. And, we have the response from Garling Associates. On June 15, 2006, the Town of Newburgh Planning Board referred the application for the Lands of Ostergen to the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals for area variances. The applicant came to the Planning Board with a 4-lot subdivision, three lots facing Taft Avenue and lot 4 being a flag lot behind lots 2 and 3. The applicant could have used this flag lot for an approvable subdivision under the Town of Newburgh Zoning Law, but the Planning Board requested the applicant be sent to the ZBA for variances on lot width for lots 2, 3 and 4 with a reconfigured design. This design would put those three lots all facing Taft Avenue, with deeper, narrower lots. The reason for this request of the applicant was that from a planning perspective, we feel as though the smaller lots fit into the community character of the surrounding neighborhood, with surrounding lots having similar dimensions. We felt as though having a flag lot with lot 4 in back of lots 2 and 3 and also in the back yards of the properties of Gabrielle and Ruckdeschel would be aesthetically undesirable for all of the residents involved, basically putting a house in between 4 people’s back yards. The Planning Board considered these two alternatives and felt that this would be a burden on 5 property owners, and the cumulative impact of having three smaller lots facing Taft Avenue would be less than having one house in the middle of 4 back yards. We hope this confirmation of the request for area variances was adequate for the ZBA’s decision and would ask them to please contact our office if further assistance or clarification is needed. Any further clarification needed?

Mr. Hughes: Well, I had some questions about that and I can refer you to the minutes of the meeting of August 24th. And, my primary concern wasn’t addressed in any of these directives from the Town Attorney or Garling Associates and it still remains to be answered, where are they going to park these cars? We had a problem and a situation with this and in that particular part of the world the road is very narrow and you can’t park on the street and the houses are up close to Taft Avenue and as far as I am concerned my main concern wasn’t addressed in either of these letters at all. So, I would like to know …

Mr. Ostergren: Sir, how many cars to you want to park at that house?

Mr. Hughes: Well, how many bedrooms in the homes?

Mr. Ostergren: I suppose those are going to be three bedroom homes.

Mr. Hughes: If the mother and father drive and they have two kids that drive, then there are four cars per household and the diagrams and the blueprints that we received …

Mr. Ostergren: I don’t think there aren’t many four-car households …

Mr. Hughes: Really?

Chairperson Cardone: Just for the record, name and address.

Mr. Ostergren: I am sorry, Carl Ostergren, Carole Ann Ostergren is my wife. The reason that these lots were made into street front lots and compressed on the frontage was because the Town had put the sewer-line through the south end of the property and we are not allowed to build on the sewer-lines. And, that why it was engineered with the flag lot with a driveway going over the sewer-line right of way to utilize the land.

Mr. Hughes: We discussed all that at the last one.

Mr. Ostergren: Right, so that’s why the Planning Board, the lot on the south has to be made wider to keep the house off the sewer right of way. That is why the two houses are narrower, but if you look on the plan there, the lot on the north side of the property is 45 ft wide. I was at the Planning Board or at the Zoning Board meeting when that lot was approved 45 feet wide. Nobody ever brought up how many cars you can park on a 45 foot wide lot and these lots are 70 ft wide.

Mr. Hughes: But, still there is no provision for parking. The houses are just what they have to be off the road as the driveway and water and sewer that you’re going to have to come in there and made no provision for parking. And that’s what I specifically asked for and you can see that that reflects that in the minutes. And everything but was addressed. 

Mr. Ostergren: Oh.

Mr. Marshall: If I may, my name is Lawrence Marshall I am from Mercurio-Norton-Tarolli, P.C.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the mic?

Chairperson Cardone: It comes off the stand; you could just take it off.

Mr. Hughes: Could you put that blueprint on the easel here so everyone could see it?

Mr. Marshall: Sure. It is my understanding that the Town Code only requires available parking for two vehicles, if I am incorrect in that statement then please correct me. But I believe that is the requirement and not to have four available spaces. Now the plan has not been revised or resubmitted to show this but I have sketched in pencil and I will highlight it right now to illustrate for the Board that it is capable of redesigning the driveways and the parking to accommodate two vehicles with a turn around. This design does not utilize the possibility of having any garages located inside the house. This is just strictly parking area along the driveway, as you can see.

Mr. Ostergren: Can I bring this point up? Is there any requirement here as to how far the house must be from the road? I mean if this house was moved to the back of the lot, you could park 10 cars.

Mr. Hughes: Well, that’s what I am looking for.

Mr. Ostergren: Well, I thought the houses were just arbitrarily placed there.

Mr. Hughes: They are pushed all the way out to the front of the road and I’m presuming by that diagram that that’s where they are going to go.

Mr. Ostergren: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: I see the building envelops there and I understand all that goes on with engineering but, to me the way it was presented I thought those houses were going to end up there and there is not enough room, as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Marshall: The only lot that is restricted would be lot 4 and we can push it back lot slightly, but with the existing sewer line, it makes this lot tighter as we push it back.

Mr. Hughes: What about that other one right there that’s right out by the road?

Mr. Marshall: This one here, we can move that back, that’s not a problem.

Mr. Hughes: I’d like to see what you have as a proposal there before I rule on this.

Mr. Ostergren: Gee, I can’t really, then we would have to wait another month to push this …

Mr. Hughes: No, but I would like that nailed down that they are not going to be up on Taft Avenue where we are going to

Mr. Ostergren: Oh, O.K. Sure O.K.

Mr. Hughes: end up with 3 or 4 cars on the lot they are going to be out on the street.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have a figure in mind to use?

Mr. Hughes: Well I am looking at the development characteristics for determining off street parking requirements in a residential per dwelling unit, it looks like 3 is the number. But, if there is another chart that you can show me …

Mr. Marshall: Three is the number? Is it there?

Mr. Hughes: Well, we’ve got several in residential. A residential condominium is two. Then, there is another section with residential bulk for two off street parking minimum per dwelling unit. But, it doesn’t say bedrooms and then if you go further into it, I don’t know if they give the calculations for bedrooms. But, if these are small lots and they are going to be three bedroom homes, the mother and father have a job and drive and if you have two other residents in there, sooner or later, the kids are going to grow up. I don’t see how you can avoid having three cars in the household, minimum.

Mr. Ostergren: I am looking at this lot here which was approved by the Zoning Board at 47 feet wide and we had, 

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible)

Mr. Ostergren: No, I was at the meeting.

Mr. Hughes: I was as well.

Mr. Ostergren: Certainly more parking than there is in this lot.

Mr. Hughes: But that doesn’t make it good.

Mr. Ostergren: Well.

Mr. Hughes: I could show you places (inaudible) pull off the road.

Mr. Ostergren: I am saying the Zoning Board, yeah but the Zoning Board just moved this square back here. I mean so; I have this stuff all sold eventually.

Mr. Hughes: Well I hope you make a lot of money, but I would like to see proper parking along with the project. I don’t know what to tell you.

Mr. Marshall: Unless there is …

Mr. Hughes: If you could nail down a number or footage off the road, I am not satisfied with the information. 

Mr. Ostergren: Well, can we, how many feet back from the road would you like this?

Mr. Hughes: Whatever it calls for in the Bulk Schedule.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that not an issue that would be discussed at the Planning Board level?

Mr. Hughes: Customarily.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I think right at this point, has there been a Public Hearing yet from the Planning Board?

Mr. Ostergren: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Ostergren. Yes, I had a Public Hearing with the Planning Board and they received the sub division for the three approved lots.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Ostergren: But at the whim of the Planning Board and in keeping with the character of the neighborhood, they asked for this geometry.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Ostergren: You know the same piece of ground, the three lots.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. And, with the approval you did not need to come to us. 

Mr. Ostergren: No.

Chairperson Cardone: You had to come to us because of the change they made.

Mr. Ostergren: Because they wanted it.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, and they verified that in their letter to me.

Mr. Ostergren: Correct. They wanted this.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. And, at no point did they discuss the parking or ..

Mr. Ostergren: No, the parking never came up. No, I am just saying that all these house here, there is more parking here than there is in any of these house up in the back here on Pierpont or in this house here on Woodlawn.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. This has to go back to the Planning Board, Mr. Hughes. Are you saying that you would like it to go back with a recommendation? 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I’d really like to have a building envelope nailed down and the parking areas resolved before we approve. Or, we can approve it with a condition.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what I am stating because now you are talking about going into another month and then going back to the Planning Board. I think in the interest of time, if the Board should decide to approve they could do so with a recommendation …

Mr. Ostergren:  Contingent upon the Building Department approving the site plans for house and parking.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. The Planning Board does it.

Mr. Ostergren: There is water and sewer here, so there’s no … 

Mr. Hughes: It would have to be otherwise they couldn’t build, small lot.

Mr. Ostergren:  … is no wells involved. Contingent with a geometry to accommodate the number of cars that the Town, that the paperwork says.

Chairperson Cardone:  The Code requires.

Mr. Ostergreen: You have to have, be it two or three.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Is that satisfactory, Mr. Hughes?

Mr. Hughes: That would be fine.

Mr. Manley: May I entertain a question to the firm, the engineering firm if I could? And that was, just for the record the size houses that you’re proposing on each of those flag lots, are each of those lots going to be 900 sq ft?

Mr. Marshall: At a minimum, at a minimum, yes. That is the minimum stated so that is required.

Mr. Manley: So there is a possibility that the square footage could be larger, yes?

Mr. Marshall: Sure.

Mr. Ostergren: These lots, we are not doing any building.

Chairperson Cardone: It has to be within Code or they have to come back to us.

Mr. Ostergren: We are just selling the lots, the builder will apply to you for a Building Permit, you know, that will comply with the lot. I can’t say whether he is going to want put up a … 

Mr. Manley:  1200 sq.ft.

Mr. Ostergren: 1200, 1500, 900 whatever his square footage is, I don’t know. He is buying a lot and that’s going to be his problem. He is going to apply for a Building Permit to put the house there and somebody is going to tell him if he can or he can’t.

Mr. Marshall: The approximate sizes of the houses that we show are about 40 x 40, a little bit less, without doing a calculation on it, without having the computer handy, I can’t tell you for sure. But, that’s about 40x40, 1600.

Mr. Ostergren: Same old story. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions, comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

                                                                                                  (Time Noted – 9:20 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: The Board will take a short recess to confer with Counsel over legal questions that have arisen from tonight’s applicants. If I can ask you, at this time, in the interest of time if you would go out into the hallway and that way we can meet quickly.

(Time Noted – 9:21 PM)
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(71-7-4) R-3 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Carole Ann Ostergren at Taft Avenue seeking a variance for height and side yard setbacks to keep a prior built shed barn on a 4-Lot sub-division and lot widths. This was a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I understand the Planning Boards reasoning behind wanting to have those 4 lots all in a row. And, certainly the applicant from what I can see appears to want to maximize the amount of lots that they can carve out of this piece of property to maximize their sale ability and profit. You know you have to look sometimes at the good of the Community for, maybe instead of having 4 lots, having 3 lots. Might not make as much but they are going to have a better size lot especially to room wise. I am really not sold on the variances that they’re requesting. And, certainly the alternatives are to put a lot in the back, a flag lot. I just wish that the developers and people who develop in the Town look for not just, number one profit margin but what’s good for the Community. I guess that’s not always what happens though in reality.

Mr. Ostergren: Is there any discussion here at all?

Chairperson Cardone: If you would like to speak, you may speak.

Mr. Ostergren: I would just like to say that the lots are 50% bigger in square foot area and over 50% wider on the street than the lot on the North side of the house that was approved by the Zoning Board. That’s an 8300 sq ft lot on the North side of the property. These lots are about 11,000 sq ft, they’re much bigger and much wider. 

Chairperson Cardone: Was there any other discussion by the Members of the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I hear what you are saying and I can appreciate that they are not as bad as something that is not so good to begin with, what we are comparing here. 

Mr. Ostergren: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: If it was up to me, my turn to speak …

Mr. Ostergren: O.K. Sorry.

Mr. Hughes: If it was up to me, I would ask you to reconfigure and knock it down one lot. Can you live with that? 

Mr. Ostergen: No. Because the, in 1991 we receive $10.00 (ten) from the Town to put the sewer right of way through that property and that sewer right away is the thing that we are tripping over now. That is the reason we configured it for the flag lot in the back because they put this encumbrance on the property. Now, you know, it doesn’t seem right that for my $10.00 from the Town that I have to take an $80,000 hit on a building.

Mr. Hughes: I understand that’s your perspective.

Mr. Ostergren: Yep, and I understand that you understand.

Mr. Hughes: We are not looking to put 3 pounds of dung into a 2 pound bag.

Mr. Ostergren: Right.

Mr. Hughes: And that’s what is going on here.

Mr. Ostergren: Well, I’ll just tell you that the Planning Board used the phrase in keeping with the neighborhood. The lot on the other side of my property is 47 ft wide. I am trying to get 70 ft lots in.

Mr. Hughes: But, when you should have 100.

Mr. Ostergren: 50% bigger. No, I don’t think the required…

Mr. Marshall: The requirement is 80 ft.

Mr. Hughes: You don’t want me to go to the Bulk Requirement Table.

Mr. Marshall: The requirement is 80 ft.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Ostergren: Yep.

Mr. Hughes: That’s a hell of a lot different than 70 isn’t it.

Mr. Ostergren: Well 70 is a hell of a lot different than 70.

Mr. Hughes: Well you are talking about something that is illegal.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think we should be debating that.

Mr. Hughes: Again I will state my case that I think it’s way too much. But I would suggest that you reconfigure and drop one lot down.

Mr. Ostergren: You know the Planning Board agreed that the three lots we submitted were legal lots for the Town of Newburgh. They were legal lots.

Chairperson Cardone: Had the Planning Board not changed the configuration, they would not be before us.

Mr. Ostergren: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I think that is something we need to keep in mind.

Mr. Ostergren: The Planning Board reconfigured it and asked me to bring it to you. But, they were legal, legally configured and engineered lots for the Town of Newburgh, these lots. So, I said to the Planning Board, O.K, I’ll do the permit and do all the mailings and put the time and expense to present this to the Zoning Board. But, I had the bird in the hand, you know, with the Zoning Board with the three legal lots, according to the Town of Newburgh Zoning. These were legal lots and the Planning Board is the one that sent me to you people and said we would rather and the Town would rather see this.

Mr. Manley: Well, I think in the Planning Board’s letter to us, they make that very clear.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes

Mr. Ostergren: Yes, I saw that letter to. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 


Ruth Eaton: Yes


Ronald Hughes:

Mr. Hughes:  Are we going to have some conditions about parking and building envelope on this. This is discussion.

Chairperson Cardone: I think it was suggested that we make a recommendation to as part of the motion that we make a recommendation to the Planning Board. Rather than a condition, a recommendation I would say.

Mr. Manley: I don’t think we can give the Planning Board conditions on something line that. 

Chairperson Cardone: We can make a recommendation.

Mr. Manley: We can make a recommendation that we have concerns over, because of the width of the lots that we have concerns with parking.

Mr. Hughes: Can I ask the engineer if you have a maximum square footage on these buildings in mind?

Mr. Marshall: As Carl said, 

Chairperson Cardone: He said it’s up to the builder. 

Mr. Marshall: … these lots are going to be sold and …

Mr. Ostergren: Being sold and somebody is going to build a house on it and I presume they are going to take it to the Town. Their plans to the Town and their plot plan and say this is what I want do you approve of it or disapprove of it. I am not building the houses.

Mr. Hughes: You are just going to sell lots.

Mr. Ostergren: I am just selling them off. And then the home builder, or the contractor will apply to the Town with his Building Permit and the Town would say the house has to be from here to there or wherever to comply with Town regulations. 

Mr. Hughes: Would it be safe to presume that the building plan as presented, the maximum square footage of these buildings would have to be in the building envelop. Otherwise they are going to end up here in front of us again.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think that legally we can do that.

Ms. Martini: That is too perspective, wait until it goes a builder and they have a definite … I disagree with that.

Mr. Hughes: The building envelope is projected on the lot says the plans has been presented are restrictive enough in themselves. There is nothing that would prevent a future applicant, a new owner of the lot, to come right back here to this Board and everyone of those lots get wrung out again.  

Chairperson Cardone: But, there would be nothing stopping them anyway.

Mr. Hughes: I just want to make sure we are in compliance with the law. And, thank you for answering all of those questions. I have nothing further.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We have a motion and a second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  No

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.  

                                                                                                   (Time noted - 9:57 PM)
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REQUEST FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE DECISION AND RESOLUTION FOR AN ACCESSORY USE APARTMENT.

Chairperson Cardone: Under other business, I have a letter from Joseph & Laurie Miccio a request for an extension. On September 22nd, 2005 we received a decision and positive resolution for an accessory apartment. The original plan was to build a 3100 sq. ft. house and use our existing residence as the accessory apartment. Immediately after the positive ZBA resolution our family income was impacted. Due to this our progress was stalled and we needed time to re-access our building plans. Our request to the ZBA is to grant an extension of the resolution and to allow us to build a smaller building of 1000 sq. ft. to use as the accessory apartment. If this is granted we can submit architectural and septic plans to apply for the building permit immediately. Also, as a point of interest, we have done two separate return receipt mailings during the 2005 period (in conjunction with two ZBA appeals) and no complaints or concerns were received. We’re hopeful that a reduction in building size remains within the spirit of the 2005 resolution and is acceptable to the Board. Our need remains the same; Laurie’s Mom is losing her eyesight due to a degenerative disease and her sister is mentally handicapped and is rendered incapable of living independently. We would continue to provide the apartment free of rent and care for both of them for their remaining years. Thank you for your time and consideration. Joseph Miccio and Laurie Miccio. This seems to be two separate issues here. One is that they are asking for an extension on the decision and resolution, which the Board may grant if they so choose. The other is to change what is written in the decision and resolution and that’s not possible. 

Mr. Hughes: Then, we can’t rule on it?

Chairperson Cardone: That we can’t rule on. If they want to change, the only thing we could do is to extend the terms of the current decision and resolution. If they wanted to change it, they would have to come back before us and re-apply because then the conditions would be changed. 

Mr. Hughes: Would it be safe to say that we could move to grant the extension providing they went with the plan that was approved?

Chairperson Cardone: It would have to be.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll move that, if you are looking for that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second for that, the extension on the current decision and resolution?

Mr. Hughes: But, according to the plan we approved.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it would have to be. Any change and it would have to come back before us. Do I have a second to that?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call Vote

Ms. Gennarelli: 
Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Everyone has had a chance to read the minutes from the August meeting. Do I have any or have people not had a chance to read it? Any additions, deletions? 

Ms. Eaton: I wasn’t here, so, I can’t vote on them.

Chairperson Cardone: Approved as … a motion to approve?

Mr. Manley: I’ll make the motion to approve.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say aye. Aye. 

Ms. Eaton: Abstain.

Aye All Others.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed? (no response) O.K. the minutes are carried. The meeting is adjourned until next month, October the 26th.                                                                                                   

(Time noted – 10:02 PM)

